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Association for Engineering and
Medical Volunteer Services
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Mission Statement

To advocate and spearhead engineering and
medical volunteering services and to inte-
grate other social resources to enhance the in-
dependent living and quality of life of people
with disabilities and elderly.

Specific Targets

- to popularize the participation of
professionals in volunteering works for
the provision of services for people with
disabilities, elderly and related people.

- to introduce new and improve existing
services in step with social and
technological developments

- to develop innovative service substance
and delivery means
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Social Servicing is Our Object,
Professional Volunteering is Our Way
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Supported Employment Service

Jockey Club Desktop Publishing Centre

Independent Living Fund

Occupational Deafness Compensation Board -
Occupational Deafness Rehabilitation
Activities and Services
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

The hardship, suffering and economic impacts brought from
COVID-19 pandemic continue on the disadvantaged and
vulnerable members in the community. It is at times that the
commitment of the Association to enhance the independent
living and quality of life of people with disabilities and elderly, and
continue to provide vital support and service where it is needed
most to recover to normal.

Responding the challenges faced during the past year, the
Association developed a few innovative services to supplement its
established services. These projects demonstrated the commitment
of the Association to relieve sufferings and improve lives wherever
we serve. Since April 2022, with the funding support from the
Occupational Deafness Compensation Board, our Association had
newly commenced a social rehabilitation project to their members
who are persons suffering from occupational deafness. This
service aligned our service mission to enrich the disabled persons’
social life and enhance their vitality through the participation of
various kinds of activities, to regain their confidence and motivation
to interact with others without hindered by hearing difficulties so as
to achieve integration into the community. All social rehabilitation
activities were infiltrated with the five senses, including the ‘sight’,
‘hearing’, ‘smell’, ‘taste’ and ‘touch’ which enabled the participants
to explore the surroundings and discovered that life was full of

hope and surprises.

As the demand for elderly community care services increased, the
Social Welfare Department had regularized “The Pilot Scheme on
Home Care and Support for Elderly Persons with Mild Impairment”,
which was funded by the Community Care Fund, into “The
Home Care and Support Services for Elderly Persons with Mild
Impairment” effective from 1 January 2023. We were appointed to
operate this service that aimed to prevent the elderly persons with
mild impairment from suffering deterioration to moderate or severe
impairment. Our service team had adopted the interdisciplinary
professional service management model in conducting
assessment, deriving individual care plan, and rendering

intervention services to address the needs of each service user.
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The service particularly focuses on the provision of rehabilitation
exercises and nursing care, aiming to reduce the deterioration and

maintain the best functional mobility.

The Electric Wheelchair Repair Clinic and Recourse Centre
initiated new service model to meet with the changing service
needs in the society. We pioneered the “Trial before Purchase
Rental Service Plan”, in which the new power wheelchair user
could receive three months rental service before placed the
purchase order, and this was more advantaged for the new users
to prevent from damaging of the new power wheelchair as well
as extending the life expectancy of the machine. Moreover, the
power wheelchair volunteer service team was further expanded to
deliver support to the new wheelchair users, and the service users
were encouraged to act as volunteers to serve the others in the

community.

In celebrating the 40th Anniversary of the establishment of our
Association, a series of events were organized for service users
and staff. A corporate video was reproduced and posted on
our website, and some of our service users were invited to the
film shooting of promoting various kind of services offered by
the Association. Designed by a service user of our Integrated
Vocational Rehabilitation Service Centre — The Endeavor, specific-
printed masks that highlighted the 40th anniversary were produced
and distributed to service users, volunteers and staff. Moreover,
staff are assets of the Association, with the sincere concerns
about the physical health and wellbeing of staff, a few activities
were organized to promote body, mind and spirit health, such as
the “40th Anniversary Staff Fun Day”, the “Singing Bowl Relaxation
Workshop”, and the “Happy Workplace Training Workshop”. Our
staff were actively participated and shared the joy of the 40th
Anniversary of EMV.

As we celebrate the Association’s 40th Anniversary, we perceive
it as an opportunity for the Association to pay tribute to the
stakeholders around who have supported us for these years.
Established in 1982, the Association remains an inspiring,
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sustainable force. Your everlasting support enables the Association
to continue to flourish in the face of adversity and our professionals
to persevere in their efforts to conduct life-changing works.
We could not be more grateful. On behalf of the Association, |
would like to give my heartfelt appreciation to all staff members
for their dedication in keeping the mission of the Association to
serve the disabled and elderly people. My gratitude also goes
to all, Executive Committee Members, Management Committee
Members, for giving valuable advice to maintain the smooth
service operation. | would like to convey my thanks to the Social
Welfare Department, related government departments, Community
Chest of Hong Kong, Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust,
Occupational Deafness Compensation Board, Employees
Retraining Board, patron, advisors, corporate partners, donors,
volunteers, and business partners for their unfailing support and
contributions of all means.

Leung Kwok Fai
Chairman, Executive Committee
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TREASURER’S REPORT
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The account for the year ended 31 March 2023 shows a deficit of
$374,912. The total income for this year was $40,167,236. The
distribution of the funding sources is as follows:
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Designated donations : IBEBN 1.3 %
Service income : BRIFUA 15.3 %
Other : HA 02%
Subvention : EBFIE

i) The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust EEEESREETES 5.4 %
ii) The Community Chest BERARE 6.2 %
i) The Occupational Deafness Compensation Board BE MR EEE R 4.5 %
iv) Social Welfare Department HERME 67.1 %

The Association adopted the Lump Sum Grant Manual issued by
the Social Welfare Department since 2000. As at 31 March 2023,
the balance of Lump Sum Grant Reserve and Provident Fund
Reserve was HK$9,500,248 and HK$1,729,813 respectively. The
balance of these two reserves was kept in two separate bank
accounts.

The Lump Sum Grant Reserve was used on the funding and
service agreement activities while the Provident Fund Reserve
was spent on enhancing the welfare of non-snap shot staff. To
facilitate staff recruitment and retention, the remuneration package
was reviewed periodically to ensure that it commensurate with the
market rate, and staff health benefit was enhanced in this financial
year.

To better utilize the provident fund reserve for non-snap-shot staff,
the mandatory provident fund benefits to the staff was reviewed
regularly.

Our Executive Committee keeps close monitoring of the
Association’s financial condition to ensure the adequacy of
provisions and ascertain the compliance with the funding and
service agreement as well as obligations to employees.

HONG Wai-chi, Christina
Treasurer, Executive Committee
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Technical / Computer Aids Services for the Disabled

S9RE A TERENR 23 | EhaEHEh &R RIEARTS

As compared with the last year, there was a huge increase in
number of enquiry and service request. The development of
3D printing technology allowed us to maintain a certain amount
of production output even through there was a shortage of
manpower, besides a new service request of providing 3D block
for the pediatric assessment enhanced our contribution to the
health professionals. Other than making the new devices, we also
helped other agencies to purchase and modify the oversea new
rehabilitation devices so that they could provide their service with
the aid support. For example, we helped the agency to purchase
and modify a special setting system for the client with spinal
cord injury in order to carry out intimate activity, we also provided
purchase and modification service for the TV game console
adaptive controllers to an occupational therapy setting.

For the enhancement service, a list of computer input devices
had been enhanced, like the head pointer, the keyboard guard for
iPad, the mouse adapted interface as well as the keyboard guard
for keyboard. Some new devices were produced including the
new Bluetooth switches, the tall adjustable tablet holder as well as
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the angle adjustable arm with super clamp for the tablet
computer. For the repair service, other than the repair
service of traditional manual and power wheelchair, we
also provided repair service of the Victor Reader Classic
Plus and the refreshable braille displays for the blind.

The service continued to solicit feedback from users
through the QR code on-line survey questionnaire printed
on every invoice. The survey findings reflected that 80%
of the service users considered that the application of
technical and computer devices could enhance their
independence and quality of life. Moreover, 80% of the
service users considered that more effective training could
be rendered through the application of assistive devices.

Through individual contact with the service users,
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invaluable comments were gathered and ideas for further Bl o i@gﬁiﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁ EHEREE  WETH

improvement of the products were also solicited. BNRR  LERYE IIEERINER -
Statistics #HETE=F 2022-2023
Service provided No. of clients served
FTiR ALAR 75 BRI AR
Design and fabricate technical and computer aids RET M B EE B &R 21,150
Repair technical and computer aids i TN = 7,580
Modify and evaluate regular technical and computer aids KB KL A BN EES 475
Provide clinical consultation and recommend REHRAT REERMEERIRT A X g
appropriate aids for people with disabled and elderly B &SR E K AHAIRIE ’
Disseminate information on technical and computer SRR R ZE R L FE R HE .
aids to rehabilitation and elderly service workers BN ER ’
Organize demonstration sessions ZHRE RS 480
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Resopedia, the short form for Rehabilitation Software Cyclopedia,
was established in 2009. It consisted of a collection of software
and related information which served as useful resources for
rehabilitation professionals working with people with disabilities
and elderly. The software and information were categorized,
hyperlinked and uploaded on internet for easy search and
reference. The set up of this on-line information platform brought
convenience and flexibility to rehabilitation professionals. The

service was free and had no membership restriction.

The materials posted on Resopedia were categorized according
to the characteristics of the software and targeted users. Users’
classification included people with physical disabilities, visual
impairment, hearing impairment, autism spectrum conditions,
intellectual impairment, cognitive impairment, communication
impairment, dyslexia, attention deficit and elderly. Software was
categorized under auxiliary control, auxiliary communication,
rehabilitation, early education, games and teaching tools. Most
of the collections were used in ipad and android apps platform.
Besides, keyword search function, which allowed users to look for
relevant information more efficiently, was also provided.
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In 2022-2023, over 70 programs related to early education for
pre-school children with various disabilities were collected. The
programs enabled them to learn language and daily living skills
through the funny and interesting games. Some collections related
to the rehabilitation therapy for those with hearing disability to
facilitate their daily communication. Besides, there were a few
collections for auxiliary control to enable people with poor hand
function to control the computer and related devices independently.
Moreover, 1,226 pieces of software were classified and uploaded
on the library. A total of 1,900 login counted with over 6,000
service users benefited from the service during the year. The
service maintain a stable utilization in compare with past year. The
information on rehabilitation software was bilingual to enable more
users to benefit from the collected Apps and software. Besides, to
enable the trainers to select appropriate training programs, user
guides and readme files were attached to the new collection.

__________

-

e OF IR S

Baf  RH#AE  SHRBEEBRHET
B - RO EENRA RSN
nRBERRERNTE - MusREINARER
FESEE > BEMERERELER
HEEE -

2022 - 2023 HAR HEETEBL+
BEEBNEKEL  BEBEAREE
MNEMREZ2EBE AHBEERE
BEETEETERERERNEHE
B EREREBATEINRBEEE
o ks EET —RIEHTE
B FEBIhBE B BE B A T B2 /B 37 #h 4%
HEMEEES KEBRRE LR
—FIEITXRNERYE  LIERED
B BABMEBAREE—TIE  #HE
ATAZERE[ERY @ BBE—FLH
B FRAAREREE - HRAIBMHR
WEBBRNREEUR AT BHE
AMERE - FTE EHNRGE R
FRSC o THT I AR A BR R AR R L fsE PR S AR
LEBERER  EERAEERZENES
;-

2

\Eﬂ%ﬁﬁ[ﬁtﬂﬂt&

12




BERAREIRL

The ‘Information Technology Solutions for Rehabilitation’ was
established in April 2017 with the support from Community Project
Grant of the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust. The project
consisted of two major services, namely ‘Computer Rehabilitation
Resource Station (C-Rehab)’ and ‘e-Workshop’. The former
concentrated on the design of online training software while the
latter focused on the development of hardware and hardware
cum software. The combination of these two services provided
a comprehensive and one -stop service for product design and
production. The ultimate goal was to enhance the independence
of people with disabilities and elderly through the utilization of
information technology.

C-Rehab
F BRI E R,

SERVICES REPORT fi#is I

Information Technology Solution for Rehabilitation
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Three major training zones namely ‘Training Zone for Intellectual
Disability’( 2944(& ), ‘Training Zone for People with Specific
Learning Difficulties’ ( %%4[& ) and ‘Training Zones for Elderly’
(E%& ) which served people with intellectual disabilities,
people with learning disabilities and elderly respectively were
established. New training programs were developed on multi-
platform from traditional desktop computer, tablet and mobile
so as to keep in pace with the touch panel display with varying
sizes. It enhanced accessibility and enabled the training to be
conducted under both outdoor and home-based environment.
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The Station received lots of constructive comments about the
program content, design and applications in this year. The service
team was highly responsive to the suggestions and comments
and paid effort to study the techniques to upgrade the programs
with injection of new designs and elements to meet the needs of
the trainers and carers of the service users. The most welcomed
program ‘Reality Orientation Board’ was enhanced with two
applications, the traditional and simplified version. The simplified
version with only clear and big words which enabled those with
poor cognitive function to use the program easily. In addition, more
information including festivals and updated weather signals were
added to enrich the content and the program became more useful
and attractive.

In compatible with the MTR new railway network, the existing ‘MTR
Routes’ ( #4474 ) was enhanced with the stations of the nine
commute lines and the airport express were well illustrated. A new
program on the classification of rubbish and learning of recycling
bins was specially designed. The program matched with the hot
issue of environmental protection for the slogan of ‘blue for waste
paper, yellow for aluminum tins and brown for plastic’. It was
suitable for both elderly and mentally handicapped players which
enabled them to learn the importance of recycling for the protection
of the Earth.

Besides, a series of programs on relaxation were designed
including the pressure management and relaxation by mental
imagery. Through guided voices, the users used their imagination
to visualize the scenery to relax mind and body so as to relieve the
stress and anxiety. The game provided two scenery of seaside and
flower blossom for selection to meet with own preference.
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The Google Chrome discontinued to support Adobe Flash by the
end of 2020. As the majority of the training programs on C-Rehab
Station were designed in Flash platform, the existing programs in
Flash mode were unable to operate under chrome browser. During
these years, the team kept up the effort to migrate the existing
programs to the new HTML version to enable the users to continue
using the programs seamlessly. The same series of programs
were integrated which enabled the migration more organized.
At the same time, the occupational therapist studied the existing
programs and injected into new training elements to enhance the
program attractiveness and training effectiveness. The new HTML
platform also provided a more concise and clear classification for

easy search and application.

The membership size had grown steadily in 2022-2023, with
the number of members of the Station was almost up to 2,050
including 450 new members. Over 44,500 persons benefited
from the service and the monthly login rate was over 5,000. Other
than individual users, there were members came from hospital,
elderly institutions, special schools, child care center, kindergarten,
day activity center, rehabilitation workshop cum hostel and other

rehabilitation agencies.

Service evaluation was conducted through questionnaires so
as to solicit members’ comments and feedback on the training
materials. Over 95% of the respondents were satisfied with the
content, design, layout and effectiveness of the training programs.
The overall satisfaction rate was up to 98%. The majority of the
users opined that the training programs were effective and easy
to operate. In addition to the use of questionnaires, a simple pop-
up short evaluation was attached to each program to solicit users’
feedback in a quick and easy manner. Over 6,600 pop-up short
evaluation forms were received and 94% agreed that the training
programs could enhance the learning interest and motivation of the
service users. It also improved their common knowledge and daily

living skills.
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e-Workshop
TEIISTE= |

The service focused on the design, fabrication and modification of
assistive devices and rendered clinical consultation to people with
disabilities and elderly to enhance their independence and quality
of living. To enhance the working efficiency, the new e-Workshop
was integrated with the workshop of Technical/Computer Aids
Services for the Disabled and Electric Wheelchair Repair Clinic
and Resource Centre.

During the reporting period, there were five newly designed
hardware and one hardware cum software produced.The five
new hardware namely, 3D printing block with PETG materials for
the assessment kit of the Evaluation in Ayres Sensory Integration
(EASI), extra-large Bluetooth switch, adjustable tablet holder with
magic arm and super clamp, game controller box for PlayStation
with full button pad, and hit ball game kit for strength training. The
infra-red pen hand writing training package which was a hardware

cum software design for hand writing training for SEN children.

These devices could facilitate the users with various disabilities to
access the IT equipment and provided training and assessment
for activities of daily living. The new 3D printing material, PETG
provided significant chemical resistance, durability and formability
was newly used in the fabrication of our new products during the
reporting year. The QR code and the Bluetooth wireless connection
had been applied in the new devices like the extra-large Bluetooth
switch. The QR code also applied in the operation of training

software to replace the traditional usage of CDs.
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Services evaluation was conducted and over 80% of the
respondents were satisfied with the function, design, craftsman,
durability, price and user guidelines of the devices. Besides, over
80% of the respondents agreed that the devices could meet the
function needs and reduced their reliance on others. In addition,
over 80% of the rehabilitation personnel and trainers agreed that
the training effectiveness was enhanced through using these
training devices and the overall satisfaction rate up to 85%. The
positive results showed that e-Workshop was able to meet its
objective and fulfilled the training and learning needs of elderly and
people with disabilities.

Though the epidemic was subsiding, the promotion through
Youtube video still be the major channel to enable more service
users to know our work. Over 5 YouTube videos for the introduction
of rehabilitation and training aids, product demonstration,
rehabilitation exercises and special pediatric training were
produced and broadcasted in YouTube channel.
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Statistics #ETEF 2022-2023
Service provided No. of clients served
FTiR BEAR 5 B IRBEAR
Membership of the Station BEAH 2,050
Design & fabricate training programs ST REUE R 44,500
Demonstration and promotion to potential users R A E &AL 55 R 220
Usage of resource library and photo library FERERENNMERE 6,000
New hardware or Hardware-cum-software TR | R s 10,200
Clinical consultation and assessment EGINGEE 5,200
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Jockey Club Digital Inclusion Centre

EETHISEMAD

The Centre mainly provided ‘E-Brain’, ‘Community Rehabilitation
Project’ and regular service. ‘E-Brain’ rendered assessments as
well as individual and group trainings for elderly aged 60 or above
with physical or cognitive impairment. The service target was
mainly the elderly referred by the local Integrated Home Care
Service Teams. ‘Community Rehabilitation Project’ rendered
assessments and treatments for people who had been suffering
from the illness or general health deterioration. The tailor-made
treatment plan for participants by occupational therapist could

improve their mobility condition.

Due to the long effect of the epidemic, the number of participants

of the indoor group activity was reduced to two to three persons
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for keeping appropriate social distance and reducing risk of
infection. Each participant had to measure body temperature,
wear mask and disinfect his/her hands with alcohol hand sanitizer
before and after exercise. The service users also supported the
infection control arrangement and willing to cooperate. In addition,
all rooms, utilities and equipment were disinfected regularly before
and after the training to ensure cleanliness and hygiene. In the
‘Community Rehabilitation Project’, two participants who suffering
from stroke attended 31 sessions of rehabilitation training delivered
by occupational therapist.

In this year, we had organized eight interest classes and two
volunteer training programs. The interest classes including
physical exercise, pastel painting, handicraft and dessert making
for 108 service users. The volunteer training programs intended
to organize a team to provide volunteer service for the users of our
Integrated Home Care Service, and to assist the festive celebration
activities. Four participants joined as volunteers after completed
the training. They participated in the Lunar New Year activities to
assist the Centre in giving gifts to service users of Integrated Home
Care Service, and to share the joyful festival atmosphere and

blessing in Lunar New Year.
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Community Occupational Therapy

it B A AR

To maximize the functional ability of people with disability

and elderly such that they can integrate into the community EREATHNRERRRERERSD &
and live independently with improved quality of life are the A AT BN BILEE  AtARES
goals of Community Occupational Therapy Service. The FEETEARBENER - REHESRE :

scope of the service included:

(1) Assessment and training of activities of daily living; (1) FEFINRE BAETEREEBED
(2) Home and work place assessment; (2) REMILEREFTM ;

(3) Consultation on home and work place modification; (3) AEREMIERBERHEEXEER
(4) Recommendation and prescription of assistive devices; (4) #HEEBIRESENWHES ;

(5) Provision of home oxygen therapy; and (5) REEFAE: M

(6) Caregiver education. (6) BREIETIAR -

The service had provided over thousand times of clinical DERMET BB — T RE R EER
visit throughout this year, the average number of visit was % FHEBABRFABE—BALA . K
around one hundred per month. The majority of service LERBNENREREARARLEAB K
user (about 62%) were referred from various community RIS > a2 AT EXEH
settings. Just around 12% of service users came from ZT_HMRBEREENREEER - iR
Hospital Authority. The service mainly providing various BRARFHE FEARBEAERESE
kinds of training to the service users, around 70% of N Bz T THRBEERSE R
service user had been benefited from the training service. REAZH  KNBEOBZ_+TEE=TH
Around 25% to 30% of service users benefited from aids RBERAEXHZENSBERSMHES
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prescription, home modification as well as the caregiver training. KEBEETRELURBBEENSINRE -
There were about 25% of clinical visit per month related to the new BRAXNEEMNZ_THAMRBERER
referred cases. Therapists needed to provide a certain follow-up HEZR  AEMBEEASEEN ALTIE
services for every referral. There was room for us to provide more H—EHENRBERER -

service on caregiver training as well as the aids prescription. In

RBEFREREE BN ERSRMHE
ARESAN - BYBHEHARES
RAESHHMENRE  BERIMFRBEMNR
FRRBERBEZENCREEEGS
B— IR - HEEB—RIKERE
Bl iR S 1B B R AR O AE AR W LURGESHT
BREEXRBENTE -

order to provide specific service for those suffered from COVID-19,
a new service had been established and modified from the home
oxygen follow-up service. It was hope that through the home
exercise and aid prescription, client could be relieved from the post
COVID-19 syndrome.

Statistics T 2022-2023
Service provided No. of clients served
FTiR AEAR 75 BRI AR
Pr(l)wd.e' assessment and training on activities of 1500t [ 2 A SR A ST T 2 354
daily living

Recommend and provide appropriate T4 A -

assistive devices ERE RS BN SR 219
Recgrnmfand home and/or work environment 1Bt R T T /b Bk s 272
modification

Provide oxygen therapy REEREERE 100
Render training to caregivers IRULIRERE R B A R IR 7S 110
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Occupational Therapy / Physiotherapy Services
BisRARE | MIEERARTE

Two new training topics had been created in this year in order to
respond to the rehabilitation needs of the society, including the
home exercise related to the COPD as well as post COVID-19, as
well as Life Style Re-Design Approach for the client suffered from
mild cognitive impairment. As the concept of Life Style Re-Design
approach was too new for the service users, the topic related to
COPD as well as post COVID-19 was more popular relatively.
There were nearly twenty different agencies using the service and
over thirty talks and seminars had been provided. Nearly half of
them were new users and the priority would be given to them so
that more agencies had the opportunity in using the service. As
there were large service demands but limited manpower resource
to fulfill all requests, there were two to three agencies could not be
served.

REEBRBFR  RENARFERR
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Statistics #HETEF 2022-2023
Service provided No. of clients served
PR SRR 75 BEXRBEAZ
Organization of talks, workshops and training for RS - REENRETIRMAERE 315
elderly, caregivers and volunteers T Esn Rall#R

Organization of activity group BYCEB)INA 100
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Integrated Home Care Services

Subsidized by the Social Welfare Department (SWD), Integrated
Home Care Services are home-based community care services
providing a range of care and support services to elderly persons
aged 60 or above living in the community. The services aim
at facilitating service users to age in place as long as possible
and maintaining their optimal level of functioning, and hence to
accomplish the ultimate objective of “Ageing in Place”. Individuals
aged under 60, families and persons with disabilities are also
included in the service targets. Integrated home care cases
are categorized into ordinary cases, elderly persons with mild
impairment cases and frail elderly cases. In 2022-2023, Integrated
Home Care Services provided services to 187 users, including 176
elderly persons and 11 persons with disabilities and families with
social needs.

As the demand for community care services increased, the
Government had regularized the Pilot Scheme that launched since
2017 to the Home Care and Support Services for Elderly Persons
with Mild Impairment (HSMI) from 1 January 2023. HSMI aims to
provide home care and support services to elderly persons, who
are assessed to be at least with mild impairment in need of greater
service needs under a designated assessment tool and waitlisted
for Integrated Home Care Service. To prevent the elderly persons
with mild impairment from suffering deterioration to moderate/
severe impairment, the service team adopted the interdisciplinary
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professional service management model which was provided for
the frail cases. Each service user was assessed comprehensively
by social worker, occupational therapist, physiotherapist, and nurse
prior to the service provision. According to the assessment result
concerning the health status, cognitive and mobility functioning,
home safety, emotional and social support, an individual care
plan was drawn up for each service user to address the specific
needs. The service particularly emphasized on the provision of
rehabilitation exercises and the education of appropriate intake of
medications, aiming to reduce their deterioration and to maintain
their best functional mobility. Over three months after service
commencement, the services for 80% approved cases had been
provided. The services were categorized into meal delivery (81%),
household cleaning (50%), rehabilitation exercise (38%), escort

service (25%) and nursing service (25%).

The service team currently provided services to 70 frail elderly
cases. All cases were referred from the SWD. Upon referral,
the interdisciplinary professional team conducted assessments,
and further set up personal care plans with the elderly persons
and caregivers. A range of services, including personal care,
medication advice and dispensing, rehabilitation exercise,
occupational therapy and/or physiotherapy, cognitive training and
other home support services, were provided, aiming to maintain
the health status and mobility functioning for an independent living
in the community. In this year, a reward program “Healthy Living
Style” was launched to encourage the elderly persons’ active
participation in rehabilitation exercise and cognitive training. The
physiotherapist or occupational therapist provided tailor-designed
weekly home-based rehabilitation exercise and cognitive training.
The elderly persons received a set of healthy food or rehabilitation
aids as reward upon completion of twenty training sessions. A total

of 62 elderly persons participated in the program and completed
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3,693 training sessions, about two hundred sets of rewarding gift
were distributed. The participating elderly persons and caregivers
agreed that the regular weekly training helped developing a
healthy living style and keeping the mobility and balance, hence
reducing the risk of fall. Furthermore, the program also addressed
the caregivers’ needs by providing different service support and
assistance, hence enhancing their knowledge and skills for caring
and facilitating family harmonious relationship. A few horticultural
therapy, art therapy and aromatherapy workshops were organized
to the caregivers for acquiring elder care and stress relief skills.
12 caregivers and 10 elders participated in the activities. The
attended caregivers agreed that they acquired the elder-care skills
and the craft making and planting workshops helped relieving care
stress.
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Statistics #ETEF 2022-2023
Case management and assessment [EES =y S & 296 hours / /J\Ef
Nursing case service IR RIS 487 hours / /)\EF
Cognitive training RANFR 460.5  hours / /N
Rehabilitation exercises EREE) 3567 hours / /)\Ff
Physiotherapy service 2R 6 B AR5 249 hours / /J\Ff
Occupational therapy service B 2R RS 975  hours/ /NEF
Pain management service A AR TS 38.5 hours/ /\EF
On-site carer training FFEEEIR 14 hours / /\Ef
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Regarding the needs of the ordinary cases, the service team had
provided professional service for the elderly persons in principle
of “early intervention and prevention of physical impairment”.
The occupational therapists followed up the users’ environmental
safety and provided 38 sessions of home-based assessment. The
nurse also visited 33 elderly persons and addressed their nursing
needs. Moreover, the second phase “Daily Exercise Keep Us Fit”
— a resistance band exercise scheme was successfully launched,
providing 339 sessions of 30-minutes home-based training for 10
elderly persons. The physiotherapist had conducted 66 sessions
for assessing the service users’ progress, and offered 5 resistance
band training sessions for the health care assistants who were
responsible for executing the training sessions to the service
users. The participated elderly persons noticed the effectiveness
of the exercise within a short period of time with the improvement
of muscle strength and reduction of pain. In the coming year, the
scheme would increase more quotas, aiming to encourage regular
home practice of rehabilitative exercises.

With the stabilization of COVID-19 epidemic in 2022, the service
team organized two outdoor social and recreational activities for
the service users. A total of 13 elderly persons and 15 caregivers
participated in the tour to Hong Kong Palace Museum. The service
also held “Joyful Gathering” reunion luncheon banquets with ten
tables and a total of 58 participants enjoyed the sumptuous lunch,
the games and lucky draw, and reviewed the previous service
highlights. The service team also delivered home visits with festive
treats during the traditional festivals, in wishing the service users
a joyous holiday season with care and love. In the coming future,
the service team would organize activities in new forms, in order

to attract the elderly persons’ participation and to enhance their

enjoyment and quality of life.
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In order to promote and assist the elderly persons to use online
application for attending the activity, two medical talks held by
orthopedists and radiation therapist were conducted in hybrid
mode. Both face-to-face and zoom channel were provided for the
20 elderly persons and caregivers. All participants agreed that the
activity had increased their understanding about knee replacement
surgery and radiation therapy, and hoped to receive further support
in assisting them to make use of the application of digital devices

for acquiring online information.

Enhancing the work performance and service quality of staff was
an important goal of the service team development. In this year,
a total of 12 training activities were organized to increase the
staff’'s knowledge from different aspects. The themes included
“Management and caring elderly persons with emotional issues”,
“Balanced dieting”, “Health maintenance of traditional Chinese
medicine”, “Understanding cardiovascular diseases”, “Emotional
management and positive thinking”, “Prevention of work-related
injuries”, “Prevention and rehabilitation of fall”, “SQS training” etc.
The service team had collected feedback via questionnaires from
111 service users. The result reflected that 100% of the service

users/caregivers expressed satisfaction with the service provision.
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Pilot Scheme on Home Care & Support for
Elderly Persons with Mild Impairment /
Home Care & Support Services for Elderly Persons

with Mild Impairment

% E it ERANREHNEETE /
SERBRE RERE R IR R

The three years Pilot Scheme on Home Care and Support
for Elderly Persons with Mild Impairment was funded by the
Community Care Fund and administered by the Social Welfare
Department, had been commenced operation since December
2017. In response to the growing service needs of the elderly, the
service was extended another three years to December 2022.

The project aims to provide home care and support services to
elderly persons with mild impairment. The catchment area of
the Scheme operated by our Association is Wong Tai Sin District.
The clientele served are elderly aged 60 or above, living in the
community, in the wait list for the Integrated Home Care Services
of our Association, already assessed at least with mild impairment
under a designated assessment tool and a monthly household
income not exceeding a specified percentage of the relevant
Median Monthly Domestic Household Income.
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The services provided by the Scheme including meal delivery,
personal care, simple nursing care, physical exercise, household
cleaning, escort and purchase and delivery of daily necessities.
Customer surveys were conducted every year in order to improve
the quality of services. At the year end of 2022, we had collected
positive feedback from the clients. All service users were satisfied
with the services provided.

Due to the impact of the COVID-19, no outdoor activities were held
in 2022. But in the Dragon Boat Festival, Mid-Autumn Festival, and
Christmas, we had given gifts to the elderly users for celebrating
the festivals at home.

The Scheme should be originally ended in December 2022. The
Government had announced in “The 2022-2023 Budget of Hong
Kong” to regularize the service of The Pilot Scheme on Home Care
& Support for Elderly Persons with Mild Impairment in 2023. The
elderlies in need could access this community support service in
long run.
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Care for the Elderly Living Alone

EARIBEE ABRFSETE

With the rapid growth in elderly population in Hong Kong as well
as the Government policy of ‘Aging in Place’, there was increasing
concern over the health and home safety of the living alone elderly.
To address this issue, the Care for the Elderly Living Alone Service
had been launched since 1990.

The service aimed to provide social and psychological support
for living alone elderly as well as those with inadequate support
from their family. Through regular visits, volunteers could provide
emotional and psychosocial support to elderly so as to reduce their
sense of loneliness and widen their social network. Volunteers
also attended to the elders’ health conditions and home safety.
Any specific observations, such as symptoms of depression,
home safety problems and deterioration of health conditions were
reported and follow-up actions were taken immediately to ensure
the elderly could continue living in the community safely and

independently as well as to improve their quality of life.

The cooperation with the Hong Kong Baptist University (HKBU)
was continued in this year. The main theme of ‘Positive Ageing’
was maintained which aimed at encouraging the participants to
understand more about positive ageing and kept positive attitude
and engaging fully in life. A total of forty student volunteers from
HKBU and twenty-seven active elderly volunteers from elderly
centre were recruited. Twenty-six cross-generation buddy
volunteer teams were formed with two to three volunteers as a
team. The kick-off ceremony and buddy team break-out activity

were held to mark the beginning of the event and welcomed the
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participants. The pre-visit training workshop on communication
skills and understanding of the frail elderly were organized to
prepare the volunteers to visit the frail elderly. The buddy volunteer
teams joined eight learning workshops on arts and handicrafts to
enable them to acquaint with each other and served as a platform
for sharing of life experiences. During the visit, simple home
assessments were conducted and a total of thirty frail elderlies
were recommended to purchase home appliances and furniture
including washing machine, electric fans, refrigerator, cooking
pot, air-conditioner and dining table so as to improve their living
environment. The final closing ceremony was held to provide the
platform for the volunteers to review and share the happiness of
the project activities.

Over 85% of the student volunteers expressed the service
could reduce the loneliness of the elderly. Over 90% of the
student volunteers expressed that the service enhanced their
understanding of the needs and daily living of the elderly living in
the community. Over 85% expressed that the service enhanced
their communication skills with the elderly. At the same time, over
90% of the elderly volunteers and visited elderlies agreed that the
service enhanced their understanding on positive ageing as well
as their confidence to manage aging process. All the participated
volunteers and visited elderly showed overall satisfaction for the

service project.

In addition, 60 elderly users referred by our Wong Tai Sin
Integrated Home Care Services were visited by our nurse
volunteer. Through these visits, health consultation, advice on
medication, personal hygiene, geriatric illnesses and balanced diet
were rendered so as to enable them to lead an independent and
healthy life in the community.
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Statistics fiETEF 2022-2023
Service provided No. of clients served
PRt AR 75 BEZRBAR
Home visit paid X&h 155
Health check up provided R REERE 60
Training provided for volunteers B T 540 40
Sharing sessions organized for volunteers BRETHES 40
Provide support and guidance to volunteers &3 T12HEE N5 40
No. of referrals made to appropriate agencies & it & IRFSHAEIZHLEE N AR TS 13
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em Integrated Vocational Rehabilitation Service Centre

The Endeavor

THE
ENDEAVOR

FEHERERZEHR O - BEPD

Since the commencement of operation in 2002, The Endeavor
aims to provide quality vocational rehabilitation services for people
with disabilities with the ultimate goal of enabling them to proceed
to supported or open employment as far as possible. The capacity
of the Centre is 200. In 2022-2023, the enrolment for the Centre
was 215.

The Centre provided a wide range of centre-based and outreaching
work training opportunities for the service users. Various kinds of
vocational skill training including packaging, retail and direct sales,
laundry, catering, office work and gardening were operated to suit
the varying abilities and interests of the service users. The Centre
collaborated with business sectors and local networks to solicit
training opportunities for our service users. To provide a simulated
work environment for the service users and prepare them for open
employment, commercial practice was adopted. The service users
were required to have shift duty, work overtime when needs arose.
The Centre’s business volume was around $2,190,000, which had
increased by 11% as compared with 2021-2022. The net training
allowance, excluding incentive payment granted to service users,
was about $1,180,000 which had increased 37% as compared with

the past year.
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With the epidemic slowdown of the COVID-19 in early 2022, the
Centre had performed disinfection, sterilization and pest control
to enhance the environmental hygiene, and preparing for the
resumption of normalcy of service. Furthermore, in order to reduce
the service users’ pressure of living, anti-epidemic care packs were
distributed and telephone or video calls were arranged to service
users to follow their service needs.

At the beginning of service restoration in April 2022, in order to
minimize the risk of spreading of viruses and to protect service
users from infection, service users were arranged to have alternate
group trainings in the Centre. With the improvement of service
user’s hygiene awareness, service user’s training time was
gradually extended and lunch provision was resumed. Although
infection cases still existed intermittently, the severity of the
disease was gradually under control, thus Centre service had been
fully recovered since June 2022 with the releasing of the infection
control measures, including acrylic table dividers and checking of
body temperature, etc.

Since the service users did not receive Centre trainings for about
3 years during the epidemic, vocational trainings had to be started
all over again, including the readapting of the work habits and their
work motivation, retraining of vocational skills and discipline, etc.,
extra efforts were required to deal with the service user’s skills

training and behavioural problems.
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In this year, the Centre had organized daily living skills training to
enhance the service user’s quality of living, such as, the training
groups for using social media, e.g., YouTube and Zoom, group
trainings for management of emotions and art workshops, etc.
Furthermore, in response to the Government’s relaxation of social
distancing measures, the Centre had organized various outdoor
and indoor activities, included the visits to Tai Kwun (Hong Kong’s
Centre of Heritage and Arts), Hong Kong Palace Museum, Hong
Kong Disneyland, Hong Kong Ocean Park, Hong Kong Flower
Show, Castle Peak Hospital's Mental Health Experience Museum

v

“Mind Space”, Christmas “Poon Choi” (#3Z) party, Centre’s
picnic, Meetings for service users and family members and the
Carer Support activity organized by Lingnan University, etc. The
service users had not only enjoyed the happy moments with the
fellow users but they had also deepened their understanding of the

history of Hong Kong.
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The Centre started to launch the Work Extension Program (WEP)
since February 2015 to address the extra service needs arose
from old age or deterioration in work abilities of the service users.
The existing WEP capacity is fifteen. Through this arrangement,
aged service users could enjoy a continuation of care and training
in a familiar environment. In this year, seven group activities, such
as workshops for calligraphy, spray painting, 3D pouring painting,
“Glow in the Dark Clay Modelling” for Mid-Autumn Festival, “Fai
Chun” writing ( ##% ) for Lunar New Year, etc. were organized
for the WEP members to enhance their quality of living and their
creativity in variety of arts.

In this year, the Centre had organized a staff training on the new
OT equipment and encouraged staff to use the equipment in
their group activities. Besides, Centre staff were encouraged to
participate in the EMV “ [RZ T {£fE ” staff training in Jao Tsung-|
Academy to enhance the team spirit and cooperation between
colleagues. Embracing the full recovery of service, focus will
continuously be placed on staff training in the coming year on the
skills to work with person with autism spectrum disorder and ex-
mentally ill, as well as the usage of new technology to improve the
quality of service provided to service users.
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Eco Farm
EHIRRET

With the support from the Environment and Conservation Fund, the
Eco Farm had commenced operation since September 2013. The
Farm is located at Leung Hong Lane, Tuen Mun with the size of
about 2,060 square metres. Besides the provision of various kinds
of horticultural training opportunities for people with disabilities,
the Farm also aims at arousing public awareness of greening,

environmental protection and social integration.

In 2022-2023, the Farm had successfully obtained $10,000 from
the Government as financial relief under the sixth round of the
Anti-epidemic Fund which was mainly used in the repair and
maintenance of the Farm. Besides, the Farm had also received
a second-handed container from a donor to replace the seriously
rusted one for storage of farm items before the arriving of the
typhoon and rainy season.

In view of the stabilization of the epidemic situation, the Farm had
gradually resumed its services, including the lease of planters,
organization of horticultural workshops, exhibition of farm
production and organization of activities to promote environmental
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protection and green living. Besides, some service users of The
Endeavor had been arranged to provide supportive work in the
Farm to enhance the social integration between the public and the
service users. Furthermore, the staff and Occupational Therapist
had organized horticultural activities for the special need of service
users, including the service users with autism and the Work
Extension Program users to train up their communication and
expression of emotions. Started from June 2022, promotions had
been performed to the nearby kindergartens in the district to raise
their interest of farming for the pre-school children.

The Farm crops harvests had not only provided to the kitchen
of The Endeavor as food ingredients, but were also placed for
promotion in the retail shop of The Endeavor. Furthermore, the
Farm harvest and crop production information were also uploaded
to the Facebook for the promotion of the Eco Farm. The Farm
would continue to resume its service, included the horticultural
activities and trainings for the service users as well as the
launching of the promotions to the kindergartens and organizations

in the district to enhance the future development of the Farm.
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Supported Employment Service

7 B 5 5% Bl 755

The operation of Supported Employment Service was first started
in March 1995. Under the subvention of the Social Welfare
Department, it is a form of employment service for people with
disabilities, which allows them to work in an integrated and open
setting with the provision of ongoing support. The major clientele
served are ex-mentally ill, physically handicapped, and mentally
handicapped persons. The service provides pre-job assessment,
skills training, job counseling and on-the-job follow-up support.
The service capacity is 50. This together with 44 supported
employment service capacity provided by the Integrated Vocational
Rehabilitation Service Centre of the Association, there are total 94

service capacity

The service adopted the “Individual Job Placement” model.
92 people with disabilities were successfully matched with job
positions in the job market last year, and 60 of them were able to
retain their jobs for at least 6 months with an average salary of
$9,925. With the appropriate job matching and referrals made
by the service unit, employees with disabilities performed jobs of
various types, including pamphlet distribution worker, clerk, retail
salesperson, customer service representative, dishwasher, waiter,

security guard, packer, cleaner, stock keeper, etc.

The service had been operating the “Car Beauty Service” under a
mobile crew model in Tuen Mun since March 2002, which aimed
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at providing training opportunities for service users and equipping
them for open employment. Apart from that, the service unit also
provided different kinds of employment skill training that matched
the needs of the open job market, such as mock interview, resume
building, pre-employment preparation, letter shopping, data entry,
map reading & route planning, cleaning and pamphlet distribution
so as to enhance service users’ working capacity and work-related
knowledge. 32 service users received job trainings during the
reporting period and 17 of them had secured job positions in the
open market afterwards.

The service unit had arranged job attachment for three service
users in this year, allowing them to gain concrete work experience
in a real employment setting. Job positions included information
technology (IT) ambassador, technical assistant, and part-time
clerk. On the other hand, two employers were offered job trial
wage subsidies upon successful job matching by the service unit.
Both employers and service users were provided work-related
support to pursue better coordination and integration at work.

To further enhance the competitiveness of the unemployed service
users in the job market, the Foundation Certificate in Prevocational
Induction Course for Disabled Persons (Part-time), funded by The
Employees Retraining Board (ERB), was also organized in July
2022. Four participants were enrolled in the course, and two of
them took up open employment after course completion. All of the
participants expressed satisfaction with the course and commented
that it helped them not only improve their job searching skills
and motivation, but also enhanced self-confidence in developing

their career paths. All these contributed to their success in open

employment in the long run.
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As the epidemic situation in Hong Kong gradually returned
to normal, a variety of activities and groups were resumed,
for example mobile phone workshops, communication skills
workshops, as well as an outing trip to the Hong Kong Flower
Show. The service unit also distributed Mid-autumn Festival
and Chinese New Year gift packs to 126 service users, hoping
to cultivate a positive atmosphere during festivals. In aspects
of service promotion, video cum physical conferences had been
arranged after the COVID-19 pandemic. At the same time, in-
person service promotion seminars and promotion stations at
hospitals were resumed to promote Supported Employment
Service to potential users, their family members and related
workers.

Aligned with EMV’s mission on the development of volunteer
services, the service unit had integrated the spirit of volunteerism
when delivering services, inviting volunteers to organize and
assist in activities. For example, the Psychiatric Medications
Consultation Day were held, in which a volunteer psychiatric nurse
provided medication information to service users on a one-to-
one consultation basis. Another volunteer shared her insight in
Zentangle drawing with services users. The participants tried to

draw Zentangle on cloth bags which constituted a fresh experience

for them. Meanwhile, service users were encouraged to use
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their abilities to serve the community and participate in volunteer
services. The service unit cooperated with the Occupational
Deafness Rehabilitation Service in offering volunteer service, such
as making Christmas cards, conducting home visit and distributing
gift packs to elderly living in the neighborhood. A service user was
also invited to be a volunteer in a Christmas programme, through
offering musical performances and sharing how music had been
playing a positively role in one’s recovery journey, this programme
aimed to encourage service users to maintain a healthy state of
body and mind.

In terms of staff development, staff were encouraged to participate
in different training programmes in order to enhance work related
skills and knowledge. Training sessions included “Professional
Training Workshop Series”, “Sharing Session and Workshop
of TlInternational Classification of Functioning, Disability and
Health; (ICF)” , “Workshop on Crisis Intervention and Mediation
Skills”, “Workshop on the Employment-related Needs of People
with Disability and Employees Injured at Work”, “Workshop on
the Employment-related Needs of Older Employees”, “First Aid
in the Workplaces”, “Online course on New Teaching Mode — the
Curriculum Design Strategy of Online Teaching and Interactive

Teaching”, “Foundation Certificate in Word Processing”, etc.

In conclusion, with over 28 years of operation, the service unit had
established a close liaison with employers, thus helped building
their confidence in employing people with disabilities. Employers’
acceptance and trust are the most crucial foundation to the career
of the disabled. In the coming future, effort will be put to explore
more training and employment opportunities for service users
such that they can integrate into the community smoothly, live

independently, and contribute to the society in return.
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Jockey Club Desktop Publishing Centre

BN Lm0

The Centre continued to provide training and work opportunities

for people with disabilities in word processing, data input, design,
printing and mailing under a simulated work environment with the
ultimate goal of assisting them to proceed to open employment.
Through the engagement in gainful work, the independence and
dignity of people with disabilities could be enhanced and to achieve
integration into the community.

Despite the stability of the epidemic, the Centre business was still
affected by the pandemic and most of the fairs and exhibitions
were cancelled which caused the loss of data input orders.
However, the Centre was still able to recruit a few new business
customers including two elderly homes and kept up some existing
business partners. It enabled the Centre to keep the stable
business volume and maintain the job orders. The Library of the
CUHK and Hospital Authority continued to provide data input
job, the desktop publishing and name card design orders which
enabled the service users’ to maintain basic income.

The Centre conducted the renovation work for the reconstruction of
the main entrance with barrier-free access, the new reception area
and an activity room that could accommodate for twenty persons.
The new renovation venue provided more spaces to conduct group
activities, talks and volunteer activities.
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During this year, two small-scale promotion were launched.
The service leaflets were sent to 500 primary and secondary
schools, kindergartens, self-help groups and social service
units in Kowloon East district. The Center received more
inquiries and requested for quotation after the publicity.

Four training courses including the ‘Introduction of Canvas
program’, ‘Usage of Instagram’, ‘Tactics for Retouch Photos’
and ‘Singing & Recording’ were organized to the service
users to enable them to enhance their computer knowledge to
keep abreast with the market trends. A total of thirty trainees
attended the courses and most of them found the training
useful to enhance their skills and knowledge.

Service users received allowance that was calculated on
piecework basis. Over 73% of the service users agreed that
the allowance could increase their earning, 85% of them
agreed that the activities provided by the Centre could help
them to regain their dignity and 84% of them more ready
adapt to the demand of the open market through simulated
work environment.
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Statistics #ETEF 2022-2023
Service provided No. of clients served
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Independent Living Fund
ReeEE

The Fund aimed to provide financial support to people with
disabilities in form of interest free loan for the purchase of
rehabilitation aids, which could enhance their independence as
well as quality of life. The Fund had operated for over twenty
years and the upper limit of the loan was raised to HK$70,000
with the maximum repayment period of 48 months. The loan was
to be repaid by monthly installment. A guarantor was required for
each application so as to ensure that the loan could be repaid as
scheduled. Each application was examined by the Management
Committee of the Fund and subsequently to be endorsed by
the Executive Committee of the Association before the loan was

granted.

There were five persons with physically disabilities applied to
purchase power wheelchair and motor car in this year. Two
applications were approved with the amount of HK$26,500 and
HK$70,000. One applicant was passed away during the approval
process. Another applicant was rejected as his situation was not
complied with the fund regulations. Besides, one borrower had
passed away and the outstanding amount was not collectible upon

proceed all the necessary procedures.
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Up till March 2023, there were 8 outstanding borrowers, advice

and support were rendered to enable them to repay the loan as
scheduled. One outstanding borrower expressed difficulties and
extension of the repayment period was arranged. On the whole,
the operation of the Fund was smooth. New promotion pamphlet
was designed and sent to rehabilitation agencies, special schools,
hospitals, disabled self-help groups, family service centres and
social security field units. Service promotion was also launched
through our web site and news bulletin.

Service evaluation was conducted through questionnaires and
the respondents satisfied with the application procedures, the
usefulness of the equipment applied and the approved amount.
The applicants found the equipment very useful in enhancing her
independence as well as their quality of life. As a whole, the overall
satisfaction rate up to 100%.
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Statistics #ETE=F 2022-2023
Service provided No. of clients served
FTiR SLAR 75 BRI AR
Inquiries EHRS 15
Applications received R EZR 5
Provision of interest free loan REESHERREERR 2
Provision of advice on the selection of appropriate devices BEWETHES 3
Assessment of social & financial condition of the applicants FHEERBE AN BB 3
Provision of advice and support to outstanding borrowers REIXESNATREZE 8
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Occupational Deafness Compensation Board —
Occupational Deafness Rehabilitation Activities

and Services

By R R R R AR E

To facilitate persons with occupational deafness (ODP) integrate
to community and enhancing their quality of life, with funding
support from Occupational Deafness Compensation Board (ODCB),
there were 62 Social Rehabilitation Activities & Services (SRA&S)
implemented, including outdoor activities, rehabilitation & interest
classes, thematic talks, group activities, volunteer services and
creative events. Meanwhile, home visitations, caring calls and
social worker counselling services were provided to ODPs. There
were 3,196 person-times ODPs benefited during the reporting
period. The satisfactory rate of SRA&S was 95.54% while our
programs while highly appreciated by most of participated ODPs.
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The sense of identity and belonging to our Association was
enhanced by participated various volunteer services in community.
We have implemented 7 times volunteer events during the
reporting period, including Home visitation for elderly living
alone, Festivals celebration with souvenir presentation to elderly,
Voluntary hair cutting service and ODP-Eco ambassador for Hong
Kong Flower Show 2023 organized by The Leisure and Cultural
Services Department. ODP volunteers could be empowered to
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service provider from service receiver through volunteer services
engagement successfully. For the participation of Hong Kong
Flower Show 2023, participants were proud to be ODP-Eco
ambassador for advocating environmental protection in our society.

Furthermore, in order to celebrate the 40th Anniversary of
establishment of our Association as well as to provide relaxation
opportunity for reducing stress among colleagues in our Association,
a special staff enhancing program named “Singing bowl relaxation
workshop for facilitating body-mind-spirit balance” was co-
organized by Head Office and Occupational Deafness Service
Department in our Association during the reporting period. The
feedback was positive from the participated colleagues regarding
above staff supporting program and the mutual understanding
among colleagues and our Association was facilitated.
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MEMBERS AND VOLUNTEERS

TERETL

The implementation of our services was largely affected by the
involvement and participation of our volunteers. To actualize
the mission and vision of the Association in utilizing professional
volunteers from engineering, medical and related fields in service
delivery, a Volunteer Management Committee was established
which aimed to explore and create more volunteer opportunities
especially in medical and engineering fields to all service units of
the Association.

8 B
i il o

The volunteer management committee meeting conducted via
zoom platform to steer the strategic development of volunteer
service of our Association. The volunteer data and statistics
including numbers of new and old volunteer participation, service
hours, service classification and number of beneficiaries from
all service units in the reporting period were compiled. The
comparison of the volunteer service statistics for the past three
years was also consolidated. It provided a comprehensive
picture on the volunteer participation and volunteer development
in the Association. The consolidated report also facilitated the
planning of volunteer work in the coming future. During this year,
the total number of volunteers were over 280, the total service
hours reached 2,200 hours and the total number of beneficiaries
exceeded 3,000. All service figures had increased significantly in
comparison with the past year, showing that the Association had
achieved good progress in the development of volunteer services.
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MEMBERS AND VOLUNTEERS €E5kKET I

The volunteer service had strengthened the cooperation between
the service units of the Association in this year. The service
users in various service units were encouraged to participate as
volunteers to serve service users in need from other service units.
It provided the opportunity for them to learn to serve others so as
to enhance their self-confidence and the service users in need

could also receive care and support from the volunteers.

Besides, the standard volunteer evaluation form was used
by all service units and a total over hundred evaluation forms
were received. The overall result to the four standard evaluated
questions including ‘to achieve the purpose of participation in
volunteer work, the understanding toward the service users, the
feeling and experience gained through the volunteer activities, and
the overall logistics and arrangement of the volunteer programs’
were rated very satisfactory to satisfactory. Through the evaluation,
it enabled us to understand the experience and satisfaction on their
participation to our volunteer work as well as to serve as valuable
data for the Association to develop multifarious volunteer tasks to
meet the need of volunteers, to benefit our service users as well as

cultivated the volunteerism in the community.

Two medical talks on ‘Understanding Knee Replacement’ and
‘Understanding Radiography’ were conducted by an orthopedist
and a new registered radiographer volunteer. Over 40 service
users, carers and staff from supported employment and home care
service attended each talk through physical and zoom platform.
The organization of the medical talk not only enhanced their
medical knowledge but also provided the volunteer the opportunity
to fulfill his interest to promote the discipline to the public. Over
95% of the participants were satisfied with the lectures.

Volunteer recruitment exercises were launched in conjunction with
the service nature of different service units so that the volunteers
recruited could utilize their skills and expertise. 42 new volunteers
joined our Association in this year, which accumulated a total of
370 members and volunteers. Orientation was organized for new
comers so that they could have a thorough understanding of the
services operated by the Association. Relevant training such as
communication skills with the elderly, understanding of the power

wheelchair users, power wheelchair driving skill were organized to
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FERET

equip them with the essential skills to carry out voluntary work. In
addition to the provision of volunteer services for our Association,
nurse volunteers were also referred to provide health check-up
and consultation services to elderly service agencies, and sixteen
referrals were made with over 700 elderly benefitted from this

service.

In celebration the Association of the 40th Anniversary and to
express our gratitude for the continued support of the volunteers,
two souvenirs including memo pad and medical facial mask
were designed and distributed to members and volunteers. The
facial mask was specially designed by the service users of the
Endeavour with the usage of the alcohol ink art technique. News
bulletin was published to keep members and volunteers informed
of the progress of the Association. To facilitate smooth operation of
the services, an updated member and volunteer database had to
be kept through regular updating of their personal information.
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Statistics HETHF 2022-2023
Service provided No. of clients served
FTiR ALAR 75 BERBAR
Training & activities organized SBYHRTHEE 42
Recruitment of volunteers BEHEL 42
Orientation organized for new volunteers B TFN A 42
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Electric Wheelchair Repair Clinic and Resource Centre

BHRIE—ikE

The Electric Wheelchair Repair Clinic and Recourse Centre
continued providing one-stop service for both the fresh and
experienced power wheelchair users, including their caregiver and
family members as well as the health professionals. As the society
resumed normal after the COVID-19, the service demand also
increased steadily. Other than maintaining the regular services,
the Center also created new services in order to meet the current
service needs in the society.

1. Start the “Trial before Purchase” new service scheme

As the majority of the service users were those who lacked of
experience of using power wheelchair, the Center provided three
months rental service for trying the power wheelchair before
they really purchased a new power wheelchair. Through this new
service scheme, users could live with a power wheelchair for a
certain period of time in order to get use to it. Within this period,
they no need to worry about any extra cost due to accident or
damaging. The rental service scheme already covered all those
expense. When the trial period was over, the user could make a
more realistic decision to go ahead purchasing the new power
wheelchair or just returning the subsidy to the funding body. The
scheme also helped the new users to prevent damaging of the
new power wheelchair as well as to extend the life expectancy
of the machine.
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2. Re-start the volunteer service team recruitment and training:

The new volunteer recruitment and training had been
successfully completed in this year. The new volunteers were
accompanied with senior volunteers in serving the real cases.
Through such kind of coaching, the new volunteers would be
more familiar with the service delivery as well as to be more
independent to handle various situations.

. The power wheelchair users volunteer service team

In order to encourage the service user to serve the community
as a volunteer, the Centre established a service user volunteer
team. The initial purpose of the team was to provide volunteer
service for the elderly or disable person. Currently, the majority
of the volunteers wish to serve the new wheelchair users in their
own community. The Centre would adjust the service purpose
and recruit the new volunteers according to their living districts.
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Statistics #ETEIT

Service provided

2022-2023

No. of clients served

FTiR ALAR 75 BRI AR
Membership BEAH 2345
oo et pgum Ry :
Provision of in-house repair e ERMEERE 301
Provision of wheelchair on-loan service e EIRMEE A RS 316
Provision of training sessions IRELE B E AR 217
Provision of Wheelchair Aid on-loan service e ERUSERESRMIMEIRE 52
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The CLEAN Laundry
iR R KARFEL ]

The CLEAN Laundry, which located at Tuen Mun Nan Fung
Industrial City, is the first social enterprise operated by the
Association. The venture aims at achieving the social objectives
of creating employment and training opportunities for people with
disabilities and also facilitating their integration into the community.
In order to enhance the sustainability of the venture, The CLEAN
Laundry has operated in business and self-financing mode.

While the operation was resumed after the pandemic, several
repair and maintenance works were also performed at The CLEAN
Laundry to enhance the safety of the workshop, including the setup
of CCTV, improvement of Wi-Fi network, repairing of the windows
and gate of the entrance, leaking and peeling of concrete in the
toilet ceiling, and improvement of air-flow, etc. The production
efficiency was thus improved as well.
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With the efforts of the staff and support from the corporates,
several new laundry contracts with hostel were confirmed. The
business volume of The CLEAN Laundry was around $651,000
which was increased by about 42% as compared with the last year.
In addition, community walk-in and laundry delivery services would
be resumed when the situation was favourable.

In the upcoming year, it is planned to arrange some potential
service users from The Endeavor to have trainings in The CLEAN
Laundry. The CLEAN Laundry would implement various infection
control measures continuously to prevent the staff and service
users from infection by the contaminated clothing. We would
continue to carefully review our pricing strategy to the customers
to maintain a competitive and cost-effective laundry service, and
efforts would be put on soliciting new customers, especially the
elderly homes in the district.
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CORPORATE AFFAIRS
HIBEH

On November 18, 2022, the Association held the Annual General WMEeER2022%F 11 B 1S HETRHRE
Meeting and the biennial election for the Executive Committee. REBHITEESGMF—EER  EX
On that day, the new Chairperson, Vice-chairperson, Treasurer, BRI EH 2022-2024 EEFH—EHNE
Secretary, and Committee Members for the 2022-2024 term were FBIEFE 5E MEBML - XEE
successfully elected. In addition, to celebrate the Association’s 40th BHKE - B4 RERBERZEO+E
anniversary, a dinner was held after the Annual General Meeting, FEBERRNEAFERASEETHRE  H2
where all staff, Members, and senior volunteers gathered to dine, BET SENMEFRZETIM—REE
to share the service highlights of the past year, to celebrate, and to NEBE—FRBEFFREHE—F -

socialize the working relationship.
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The Association also organized a series of celebrative activities for METEEN+RE S8 —EZH2NE
the 40th anniversary. WEE - B MEENRENRE—

ENMARENEANRBEANRBER
Firstly, the Association produced and filmed a new service video ERREBEEREELEINE LR

introducing the organization and its various service units, also Ho@\E BENEY—EBHRERDD
expressed gratitude for the participation of service users and BEAEKESHEE WA MTENH
volunteers. Additionally, the organization selected an ink-wash RAENTRELSROS R FIRE
painting created by a service user from The Endeavor (Integrated SHREBE - Rtz BERETAE
Vocational Rehabilitation Service Centre) and produced as EEEE —EHt2BFTMMANE O
commemorative facial masks for the 40th anniversary, which were BE SBEITEIEREE TINEFE
distributed to service recipients and staff. # o BMIN+RAE  EESELHE—F
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Furthermore, the Association highly valued our employees as
precious assets, and always concerned about their physical and
mental well-being, and encouraged them to achieve the work life
balance. In celebration of the 40th anniversary, the Association
arranged a series of training and activities focusing on caring
for the employees’ physical and mental health. These included
orientation sessions for new employees, happy workplace
workshops, singing bow! relaxation workshops, a staff fun day, and
health check-ups, which allowed each staff to enjoy the activities
in a relaxed and joyful manner. These also deepened the mutual
understanding and working relationship among each other in
various service units, standing together to overcome the impact of
the pandemic over the past three years and move forward to a new

milestone!
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The members of the Executive Committee have pleasure in submitting their annual
financial report and the audited financial statements of the Asscciation for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Association is an incorporated woluntary and non-profit making body. Its
principal activity is provision of engineering and medical professicnal services
to needy individuals and organizations.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the state of affairs of the
Association at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 6 to
28.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movemsants in plant and equipment during the year are set out in Note 4 to the
financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserve accounts of the Association during the year

are set out in MHote € to ZB to the financial statements.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The committee members of the Association during the year were as follows:-

Mr Law Chit Wai

Dr Chan Hok Sum

Mr Chan Yuk Keung

Mr Cheung Kin Man

Ms Hong Wai Chi

Mr Fong Wai Lap

Mr Leung Kwok Fai

Ms Cheung Kam Ling Margaret
Mr Kwan Fu Kei, Larry

Ms Kwan Tak Ying, Estella

In accordance with article 34 of the Asscciation's Articles of Association, all

committee members will retire and, being eligible, offer themselwves for re-
election biennially at the annual general meeting.
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Page 2

ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

REFORT OF THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

= Continued -

COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE ASSOCIATION'S OPERATION

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Association’s operation to which the Association was a party and in which a
committee member of the Association had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Me contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the operation of the Association were entered into or
existed during the year.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. Chan & Man, Certified

Public Accountants (Practising), whe retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Executive Committee

;]A/éﬂulﬂé’) ‘
Mr Cheung Kin Man, Vice Chairman

pated: 77 O0CT 2003

Hong Kong
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Page 3
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ASSOCIATICN FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES
(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Association For Engineering And
Medical Volunteer -Services (the “Association”) set out on pages 6 to 29, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Association as at 31 March 2023, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. -

BASIS FOR OPINICN

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. -Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the BRuditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Association in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants {(“the Code”}, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

OTHER INFORMATION

The committee members are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Report of .the Committee
Members, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report
therecn.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connecticn with our audit of the financial statements, cur responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, basad on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior
to the date of this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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Page 4
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES
{Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

~ Continued -

RESPONSIBILITIES OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS FQOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The committee members are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Comparnies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the committee members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the firancial statements, the committee members are responsible for
assessing the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the committee members either intend to liguidate the
Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
so.

UDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgmént
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:-

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from' fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. - :

-  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Association’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting' policies used and . the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
committee members.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF :
ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES
(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- Continued -

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the committee members’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to medify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a
geing concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, incluaing the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with committee members regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

0 fa Moo

Certified Public Accountants
{Practising)

Hong Kong

Date: 27 UC]‘ m : ‘ -
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

INCOME
Designated donations:
Cthers

Subventions:
Heng Keng Jeckey Club Charities Trust
Community Chest
Sccial Welfare Department HESAR Government
Time Limited Post Grant
COVID 19
- Lotteries Fund
Block Grant

Community Care Fund

1

1

Subventions from Employvees Retraining Board utilized

Service income

OTHEER. REVENUE
Interest income
Sundry income

5]
L=
[ 4]
L]

|

b 5
=
Ay

2,319,769

2,168,163
2,511,600
25,844,278
71,500
20,000

425,420
598,876

33,959,604
34,125
6,137,373

Page 6

2022
HES

601, 200

2,208,400
1,761, 600
25,526,576

130,800

99, 500
126,600
545,385

31,300,061

28,518

5,528,072

40,131,102

36,857,651

36,135 460
- 9,310
40,167,237 36,867,421
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

STATEMENT OF COMFREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

EXPENDITURE
Salaries
Provident fund contributions and charges
Provision for long service payment
Programme and sServices edpenses
Repairs and maintenance
Brinting, postage and stationery
Travelling
Telephone and fax
Electricity and water
Insurance
Rent and rates
Cleaning
Depreciation
Bdvertising
General expenses
Annual general meeting and dinner
Written off of loan to disabled (deceased)
Equipment and uniform
Computer expenses
Staff training
Transportation
Motor wehicles expenss
Renovation by Capital Project Fund
Audit fee
SWD Fund expense
LE Fund/I&T Fund expense
Block grant expense
SWD - COVID-19 expense

{DEFICIT) /SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

66
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2023 2022

HKS HKS
23,858,890 21,332,717
1,533,909 1,851,735
32,402 {7,640}
6,829,976 6,832,927
469,209 292,658
248,935 204,249
445, 368 309,421
143,965 88,152
802,911 441, 665
144,692 168,815
1,897,863 1,832,816
316,188 335,850
413,150 283,388
134,717 110,925
186,160 213,023
50,873 39,188
47,130 -
901,381 245,618
257, 450 -
133,564 52,409

- 129,629

102,349 80,012
1: z:dlr 95'0 -
38,500 38,000
28,000 39,800
88,760 233,583
421,222 470,283
B0, 299 186,107
(40,5B9,773) (35,8le,340)
1,051,081

{422,538)




ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICARL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2023
HES
- Continued -
({DEFICIT) /SURFLUS FOR THE YERR (422,536)
TRANSFERS FROM/ (TO) :
General Fund 878,261
Service Foundation Fund (506,150}
Independent Living Fund 47,130
Supported Employment Services 44,183
Jockey Club Desktop Publishing Centre 95,303
Home Care Services (14,793)
The Endeavor 226,330
Laundry Workshop (22,534)
Jockey Club Digital Inclusion Centre 14,792
Electric Wheelchair Repair Clinic and Resource Centre (104, 699)
EC Farm - Vocational Training and
Horticulture Educational Scheme (14, 480}

Community Care Fund - Pilot Scheme on

ilome Care and Support for Elderly Persons

with Mild Impairment (245,827}
Social Welfare Department Time-Limited

Posts for Elderly and Rehabilitation

Services 25,000

Page 8

2022

1,051,081

639,871
(547,600}

(413, 358)
(35,951}
(505,103}
(425,188}
{3,234}
TJ 11?
333,182

24,149

(120,676}

{2,300}

ACCUMULATED BALANCE AT END OF YEAR -

s

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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BSSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES
STRTEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023
2023 2022
NOTE HES HKS
HON-CURRENT ASSETS
Leans to disabled 3 72,925 120,485
Plant and egquipment 4 236,410 284,492
309,335 404,977
CUORBENT ASSETS
Prepayments and other receivables 2,370,863 777,173
Utility deposits 203,830 234,030
Current portion of loans to disabled 3 99,150 103,830
Cash and bank balances 17,377,163 20,420,572

20,080,808 21,535,805

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 989,818 1,042,433
Accruals 38,500 38,000
Becaipts in advance 38,404 33,283

{1,066, 722) (1,113,718)

HET CURRENT ASSETS 18,984, 084 20,421,889

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long service payments obligation 5 {6, 595) (63,183}

TOTAL ASSETS 19,286,924 20,763,683
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

2023 2022
NOTE HKS HES

- Continued -

Represented by:
General Fund
Service Foundation Fund
Independent Living Fund

5,390,726 6,124,987
2,493,760 2,540,880

=
oo B

Supported Employment Services 277,263 277,263
Jockey Club Desktop Publishing Centre (1,878,972} (1,7B3,669)
Home Care Services 528,150 528,150
The Endeavor 57,241 57,241
Laundry workshop 13 103,511 B0, 977
Social Welfare Department

Lump Sum Grant Reserve 14 9,500,249 10,823,431
Social Welfare Department Provident Fund 15 1,729,813 1,271,055
Social Welfare Department Central Items 16 142,917 142,917
Social Welfare Department Block Grant 17 221,253 267,922
Social Welfare Department

Rent and Rates 14 (847,965) {810,869)
Community-based support projects for Persons

with disabilities and their families 19 130,686 130, 686
Social Welfare Development Fund 20 388,744 3BB, 449
Jockey Club Digital Inclusicn Centre 21 {69,924) (55,133)
Electric Wheelchair Repair Clinic and

Resource Centre 22 1,399,990 1,285,291
EC Farm - Vocational Training and

Horticulture Educational Scheme 23 (599,413) {613,873)
Community Care Fund - Pilot Scheme on

Home Care and Support for Elderly Persons

with Mild Impairment 24 : 318,795 72,968
Time-Limited Posts for Elderly &

rehabilitation Services 25 - 25,000
TOTAL FUNDS 19,286,824 20,763,683

e S . ===

The financial statements on pages 6 to 28 were approved by the members of
Executive Committee on Z? UC]'una and were signed on its behalf

Mr Cheung Kin Man J ) Ms Hong Wai Chi F
Yige Chairman Committes member

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2023 2022

HES HES

Total eguity at 1 April 20,763,683 22,090,727
(Deficit)/Surplus for the year (422,536) 1,051,081
Refund to Government {1,054,323) (2,378,125)

Total eqguity at 31 March 19,286,824 20,763,683

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

STATEMENT OF CASE FLOWS
FOR THE YERR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
{Deficit) /Surplus for the year
Adjustments for:

Provision for long service payment
Interest income
Depreciaticn

Operating [deficit)/surplus before
movements

Changes
Changes
Changes
Changes
Changes
Changes
Changes

Cash (used

in
in
in
in
in
in
in

in working eapital

lpans to disakled

prepayments and other receivables
utility deposits

accounts payable

accruals

receipts in advance

long service payment

in) /generated from operations
Eefund to Government

Met cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments to acquire plant and equipment
Interest income received

Net cash used in investing activities

MET CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CRASE AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT FORWARD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH RND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and in hand

Bank overdraft

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2023 2022

HES HKS
(422,536} 1,051,081
32,402 (7,640)
(36,135) {460)
413,150 283,388
(13,119) 1,326,369
52,240 163,595
11,593,490) (65,823)
30,200 (&6, 000)
(52,615} 204,586
500 3,500

5,121 (5,068}
(88,590) {117,652}
(1,860,153) 1,443,507

11,054,323)

{2,378,125)

(2,714,4786) (934, 618)
(365,0868) (557,737}
36,135 480
(328, 933) (557,277}
{3,043, 40%) (1,491,895)

20,420,572

21,912,467

17,377,163

EEEmE L eEE=

2023

17,377,163

20,420,572

20,420,572

17,377,163

=1 ]

20,420,512

HEENFEEETES
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

NOTES TO THE FINARNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1. CENERAL INFORMATION

The Asscciation was incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong on 5 June 1%80.
Pursuant to Section 21 of the Companies COrdinance, the Association has
cbtained approval from the Registrar of Companies to register the
Association without incorporating the word “Limited” to its name.

The Association is limited by guarantee and, accordingly, it is not
authorized to issue share capital. The liability cof members is limited to
HES100 each.

There were 10 members as at the statement of financial position date
(2022: 10).

The address of its registered office is No. 207-212, Podium Floor, Block 44,
Shek Kip Mei Estate, Kowloon.

The principal activity is provision of engineering and medical professional
services to needy individuals and organizations.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal acccunting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied teo all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

{a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Heong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HEASs) and
Interpretations issued by the Heng Keng Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HEICFR).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Association. MNote 2{c) below provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments Lo the extent that they are relevant to the
Asszociation for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

(b} Basis of preparation of the financial statement

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with a1l
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which
collective term includes all applicable indiwvidual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Keng Accounting Standards (HKASs) and
Interpretations issued by the Heng Kong Institute of Certified Public
ARccountants (HXICPA) and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Keng. They have been preparsd under the historical cost conventlon.
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ASSOCIATION FOR BNGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- Continued =

(c}

{d}

(e)

t£}

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HEFRSs and new
interpretations that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Association. cf these, none of the developments are
relevant to the Association’s financial statements.

The Asscciation has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting peried.

Income recognition

Income is recognized when it is probable that the econcmic benefits will
flow to the Associaticn and when the income can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(i) Subventions, when there is reasonable assurance that the
Association will comply with the conditions attaching to the
subventions and that the subventions will be received. Subventions
are recognized as income over the periods necessary to match them
with the related costs which they are intended to compensate, on a
systemabtic basis;

{ii) Donations and membership annuwal subscripticens, upon actual cash
receipt ;

{iii} Interest income, on a time proportion basis taking inte account the
principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable;
and

{iv) Service income, in the period in which such services are rendered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Association will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Association for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or leoss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Rsscciation for the cost of an assets are deducted from the carrying
amount of the assets and conseguently are effectively recognised in
profit or less over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Association reviews the carrying amcunts of
itz assets to determine whether there is an indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of an assets is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds recoverable amount which is the higher of an
asset’s fair wvalue less costs to sell and wvalue in use. Impairment
losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income except
where the asset is carried at waluation and the impairment loss does not
exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is
treated as a revaluation decrease.
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGIMEERING AND MEDICAL WVOLUNTEER SERVICES

WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES

- Continued -

(g}

{h

(i)

{3

74

Plant and egquipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. For property, plant and equipment which are funded by
government grants or other grants, such grants are deducted in arriving
at the carrying amount of the assets, and the balance of the cest of
these assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost/value of each asset,
less their estimated residual wvalue, if any, using the straight line
method over their estimated useful lives. The principle annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:-

Furniture and eguipment 33%%
Leasehold improvement 50%

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or dispesal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure on
the date of retirement or disposal.

Receivable

Receivables are initially recognised at fair walue and thereafter stated
atr amortised cost less allowance for impairment losses of bad and
doubtful debts, except where the receivable are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment lesses of bad and doubtful
debts.

A provision for impairment of the receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Asscclation will not be able to collect
all amounts due according te the original terms of recelivables. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair wvalue and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at original inveoice amount.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term,
highly liguid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at acgquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Association’s cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING BND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2., SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

= Continued -

(k) Employes benefits

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Association's employees have completed the reguired number
of years of service to the Asscciation in order to be eligible for long
gservice payments under Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Employment
Ordinance”) in the event of the termination of their employment. The
Association is liable to make such payments in the event that such a
termination of employment meets the circumstances specifisd in the
Employment Ordinance.

& provision is recognized in respect of the probable future leng service
payments expected to be made., The provision is based on the best estimate
of the probable future payments which have been earned by the employees
from their services to the BAssociation to the statement of financial
position date.

A contingent liability is disclosed in respect of possible future long
gervice payments to employees, as a number of current employees have
achieved the reguired number of years of service to the Association, Lo
the statement of financial position date, in order to be eligible for
long service payments under the Employment Ordinance if their employment
is terminated in the circumstances specified. A provision has not been
recognized in respect of such possible payments, as it is not considered
probable that the situation will result in a material future outfleow of
resources from the Association.

Pension schemes

The Association operates a defined contribution Mandatory Frovident Fund
retirement benefits scheme ({the “MPF Scheme”) wunder the Mandatcry
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those emplovees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income and expenditure as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Association in  an

independently administered fund. The Association's employer
contributions wvest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

{l) Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the statement of
income and expenditure on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

im] Designated donations and related expenditure

Designated donations received are credited directly teo the respective
funds. Expenditures are charged tc these funds where appropriate.
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ASSCCIATION FOR ENGIMEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YERR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2.

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- Continued -

{n) Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Association has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of ecconomic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time wvalue of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannct be estimated reliably, the cbligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of cne or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of cutflow of economic benefits is remote.

LOANS TO DISABLED

2023 2022

HE HES

At beginning of year 224,315 387,910
Advances during the year 96,500 29,290
Written off of loan to disabled (deceased) (47,130) -
Repayment during the year (101, 610) (192,885
At end of year 172,075 224,315
Portion classified as current assets (99,150) (103,830)
Non-current portion 72,925 120,485

These are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable by monthly instalments.
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

4.

FLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture Leasehold

& Equipment Improvement © Total
HEKS HES HES

COST
At 01.04.2021 199,826 128,100 327,826
Addition 11,037 546,700 557,737
At 31.03.2022 210,863 £74,800 ~ BB85,863
Addition 301,183 63,885 365,088
At 31.03.2023 512,048 738,685 1,250,731
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 01.04.2021 139,683 128,100 317,783
Charge for the year i0,038 273,350 283, 388
At 31.03.,2022 199,721 401,450 601,171
Charge for the year 107,857 305,293 413,150
At 31.03.2023 307,578 The, 743 1,014,321
HNET BOOK WVALUE
At 31.03.2023 204,468 31,942 236,410
At 31.03.2022 11,142 273,350 284,492

LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS OBLIGATION

The Associatien had provided long service payments for employees who had
fulfilled the regquired number of years of service under Heng EKong's
Employment Ordinance (the *‘Employment Ordinance’’) on their termination of
employment.

The provision for long service payments is calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the Employment Ordinance and is reduced by the cumulative
employer’s contribution to the MPF.

At 31 March 2023, 35 employees ([2022: 34) had fulfilled the required number
of years of service under Employment Ordinance. The total amount of the
provision for long service payment should be HK$653,435 (2022: HES546, 687).

However, Social Welfare Department will subvent the long service payments
for the employees under Supported Employment Services, Integrated Home Care
and the Endeavor. No provision was recognised in respect of such payment as
no material outflow of resources will be reguired to settle the cbligation.
The correspondence amount was disclosed as contingent liability in Note 29
to the financial statements.

The provision was only recognised for the employees under Central
Administration.
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
6. GENERAL FUND
2023 2022
HES HES
Balance at beginning of year - -
Transfer from statement of comorehensive income (B77,767) (639,871)
Transfer to Service Foundation Fund - note 7 877,767 639,871
Balance at end of year = : =
SERVICE FOUNDATION FUND
2023 2022
HES HES
Balance at beginning of year 6,124,937 6,217,258
Transfer from statement of comprehensive income 506,150 547,600
Transfer from General Fund - note 6 (B78,261) (639,871}
Transfer to Sccial Welfare Department Provident
Fund Surplus - note 15 (362,150) -
Balance at end of year 5,390,726 6,124,987

The Service Foundation Fund [(“S5FF") was set up to support the development of
new services of the Association and the surplus balance of SFF will be used

to offset against any deficits in the General Fund.

INDEPENDENT LIVING FUND

2023 2022
HES HEKS
Balance at beginning of year 2,540,890 2,540,8%0
Transfer from statement of comprehensive income (47,130} -
Balance at end of year 2,493,760 2,540,890

The Independent Living Fund was set up separately to provide interest-free
leoans to the disabled and, accordingly, it is not to be used to cover any
deficits which were derived from any other services or funds.
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ASSOCIATION FOR ENGINEERING AND MEDICAL VOLUNTEER SERVICES

NOTES TO TEE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

9.

10.

11.

SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT SERVICES

Page 20

2023 2022
HKS HKS
Balance at beginning of year 277,263 278,743
Transfer (to}/from statement of comprehensive income (44,183) 413, 358
Transfer from/(te) Social Welfare Department
Lump Sum Grant Reserve - note 14 44,183 (413, 358)
Fund transfer to Social Welfare Department
Lump Sum Grant Reserve
agreed by SWD SF/SAS/4-35/1/3(010] - note 14 - {1,480}
Balance at end of year 277,264 277,263
The Supported Employment Services, commenced in March 1995, provides
employment opportunities to the disabled.
JOCKEY CLUE DESKTOFP PUBLISHING CENTRE
2023 2022
HEKS HEKS
Balance at beginning of year {1,783, 669) {1,819,620)
Transfer to statement of comprehensive income {95,303} 35,951
Balance at end of year {1,878,972) {1,783, 669}

The funding from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust and Chinese
Permanent Cemeteries was used to set up a workshop to provide training and
employment for the disabled since March 1936 and, acecordingly, it is not to
be used to cover any deficits which were derived from any other services or
funds.

HOME CARE SERVICES

2023 2022

HES HKS

Balance at beginning of year 528,150 528,150

Transfer from statement of comprehensive income 14,7923 505,103
Transfer to Social Welfare Department

Lump Sum Grant Reserve - note 14 114,793 {505,103)

Balance at end of year 528,150 528,150

The Home Care Services aims to provide home care to the elderly and disabled,

as well as needy families so as to assist them to continue living in the
community.
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12. THE ENDEAVOR
2023 2022
HK$ HES
Balance at beginning of year 57,241 76,810
Transfer (to)/from statement of comprehensive income (226,330) 425,168
Transfer from/(to) Social Welfare Department
Lump Sum Grant Reserve - note 14 226,330 (425, 1E8)
Refund to government - (19,569}
Balance at end of year 57,241 57,241

O — = =]

This is an integrated vocaticnal rehabilitation service centre subvented by
the Social Welfare Department.

13, LAUNDRY WORKSHOP

2023 2022

HES HES

Balance at beginning of year a0, 977 75,743
Transfer to statement of comprehensive income 22,6534 5,234
Balance at end of year 103,511 80,977

The Clean Laundry was funded by the grants from the ‘Enhancing Employment of
People with Disabilities through 5mall Enterprise’ Project of the Social
Welfare Department. The Project commenced operation since February 2006.
The project is to operate on a self-finance mode after expiry of funding
support from the Scocial Welfare Department. )
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14.

15.

SOCIAL WELFARE DEPARTMENT LUMP SUM GRANT RESERVE

Balance at beginning of year

2023 2022
HES HKS

10,823,421

11,111,451

Transfer (to)}/from Supported Employment

Services - note 9 (44,183) 413,358
Transfer from Home Care Services - note 11 14,793 505,103
Transfer (to}/from The Endeavor - note 12 (226, 330) 425,188
Transfer (to}/from Social Welfare Department

Provident Fund - note 15 (109, 352) 587,287
Transfer from Social Welfare Department

Block Grant - note 17 46,669 133,287
Transfer from/(to) Social Welfare Department

Fent and Rates - note 18 37,096 (3,711)
Transfer to Social Welfare Development Fund

- note 22 (295) {20,212)
Refund to Government (1,041,541) (2,326,364)
Refund to Government for previous years - (5,392)
Fund transfer from Social Welfare Department

Lump Sum Grant Reserve

agreed by SWD SF/SAS/4-35/1/3(010) - note 9 - 1,480
Fund transfer from Social Welfare Department

Provident Fund agreed

by SWD SF/SAS/4-35/1/3(010) - note 15 - 1,956
Balance at end of year 79,500,248 10,823,431

EEEEEEEE=ES

In accordance with the Lump Sum Grant Manual issued by the Social Welfare
Department in October 2000 and adopted by the Asscciation, any unspent lump
sum grant is to be transferred to and kept in a separate reserve fund.

SOCIAL WELFARE CEPARTMENT PROVIDEWT FUND

2023 2022
HKS HES
Balance at beginning of year 1,271,055 1,860,298
Transfer from/(to) Social Welfare Department
Lump Sum Grant Reserve - note 14 109,392 {587,287
Fund transfer to Social Welfare Department
Lump Sum Grant Reserve
agreed by SWD SF/SAS5/4-35/1/3(010} - note 14 - (1, 956)
Transfer from Service Foundation Fund - note 7 362,150 -
Refund to Government (12, 784) -
Balance at end of year 1,729,813 1,271,055

- T i

In accordance with the Lump Sum Grant Manuwal issued by the Social Welfare
Department in April 2005, any unspent lump sum grant is to be transferred to
and kept in a separate reserve fund.
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16. SOCIAL WELFARE DEPARTMENT CEMTRAL ITEMS
2023 2022
HKS HES
Balance at beginning of year and at end of year 142,917 142,917

T SsssrammEE
In accordance with the Lump Sum Grant Manual issued by the Social Welfare

Department in April 2005, any unspent lump sum grant is to be transferred to
and kept in a separate reserve fund.

17. SOCIAL WELFARE DEPARTMENT BLOCK GRANT

2023 2022

HEKS HES

Balance at beginning of year 267,922 401, 20%
Transfer to Social Welfare Department

Lump Sum Grant Reserve - note 14 [46, 665) (133,287)

Balance at end of year 221,253 267,822

=ik T

The Bleock Grant aims to meet the minor and routine Furniture and Egquipment
replenishment and repairs and maintenance requirements of Agencies in
respect of their subvented welfare service so as to replace the need for
individual applications.

Movement of the F&E Replenishment and Minor Works Block Grant Reserve is as

follows:-
HES

Credit balance b/f from previous financial year 267,922
Add: Block Grant received during the year 374,000
Interest income received 553

374,553

6d2, 475
Less: Expenditure during the year (Note):- )
Furniture and eguipment {421,222)
Credit balance c/f to the next financial year 221,253
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17.

18.

19.

SOCIAL WELFARE DEPARTMENT BLOCK GRANT

- Continued -
Capital Commitments

Zs at 31 March 2023, the cutstanding commitments in respect of Furniture and
Equipment Replenishment and Minor Works Grant were as follows:

HES

Contracted f£or but not provided in the financial statements -
Buthorized but not contracted for -

Note: Expenditure charged to Block Grant during the year should be full
expenditure amount, i.e. the actual expenditure incurred in 2022-23.

S0OCIAL WELFARE DEFARTMENT RENT AND RATES

2023 2022
HKS HES
Balance at beginning of year {8910,869) (T87,779)

Transfer (to)/from Social Welfare Department
Lump Sum Grant Reserve — note 14 (37,096) 3,711
Refund to Government - (26,801)
Balance at end of year (847, 965) (B10,869)

1n accordance with the Lump Sum Grant Manual Issued by the Social Welfare
Department in RApril 2005, any unspent lump sum grant is te be transferred to
and kept in a separate reserve fund.

COMMUNITY-BASED SUPPORT PROJECTS FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES AND THEIR
FAMILIES

2023 2022
HES HKS
Balance at beginning and end of year 130, 688 120, 686

Community-based Support Projects for Persens with Disabilities and their
Families aims to provide comprehensive and continuous on-the-job support to
persons with disabilities sc as to enhance their adaptation and problem
solving abilities. The ultimate goal is to assist them to retain their
employment. Support is also rendered to their families to relief their
pressure and improve their family relaticnship.
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20. SOCIAL WELFARE DEVELOPMENT FUND
2023 2022
HKZS . HKS
Balance at beginning of year 3BB, 449 368,237
Transfer (to)/from Social Welfare Department
Lump Sum Grant Reserve - note 14 295 20,212
Balance at end of year 388, 744 388,449

The Fund is allocated by the Social Welfare Department te support training,
capacity enhancement initiatives and service delivery enhancement studies.

Movement of the Social Welfare Develcpment Fund (SWDF) is as follows:-
HES HKS
{a)Balance of SWDF brought forward - Phase 3 (a) 388,449

Income
{b)Allocation from SWDE during the financial year (b -
{c}Interest received during the financial year - Phase 3 {ec) 295

{d) Expenditure

Expenditure for projects under scope A -
Expenditure for projects under scope B (non-IT) -
Expenditure for projects under scope B (IT) -
Expenditure for projects under scope C -
Expenditure for Administrative Support

Total expenditure during financial year -

N L By =

(d] -

(e)Balance carried forward to the next financial year (e} 388,744
{e)=(a)+(b)+{c)-(d} [——

The above expenditures under the SWDF have been incurred in accordance with
the requirements stipulated in SWDF Guidance Notes for application, SWD's
approval letter(s) and the procurement of projects and services are in line
with the procedures specified in the Letteries Fund Manual.

21. JOCKEY CLUB DIGITAL INCLUSION CENTRE

2023 2022
HES HES
Balance at beginning of year (55,133) (48,016)
Transfer to statement of comprehensive income (14,731) {7,117)
Balance at end of year (€3, 924) {55,133)

The Centre aims to narrow the digital divide and enhancing digital

accessibility of people with disabilities and elderly such that they can
also benefit from the advancement in technolegy.
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22,

23,

ELECTRIC WHEELCHAIR REPAIR CLINIC AND RESOURCE CENTRE
2023 2022
HES HES
Balance at beginning of year 1,295,291 1,628,483
Transfer from/({to}) statement of comprshensive income 104, 699 [333,192)
Balance at end of year 1,399,990 1,295,291

e EmEEEEEETE
The Centre provides repair, maintenance and rental of electric wheelchair so

as to facilitate mobility of people with disabilities and elderly and thus
their integration inte the community.

EC_FARM - VOCATIONAL TRAINING AND HORTICULTURE EDUCATIONAL SCHEME

2023 2022

HKS HKS
Balance at beginning of year (613,873) (589,724)
Transfer from/(to) statement of comprshensive income 14,460 (24,149}
Balance at end of year (599,413} (613,873)

The Farm Project, commenced in March 2013, provides training opportunities

for people with disabilities on farming and horticulture and facilitate
their integration into the community.
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FOR THE YEARR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

24, COMMUNITY CARE FUND - PILOT SCHEME ON HOME CARE AND SUPPORT FOR ELDERLY
PERSONS WITH MILD IMPAIRMENT

During the year, the Association has implemented Community Care Fund {“CCE"]
assistance programme. According teo the reguirement of CCF, the Asscciation
is required to discleose the income and expenditure for the programme in its
financial statements.

2023 2022

HES HES

Balance at beginning of year 72,968 (47,708}
Transfer from statement of comprehensive income 245,827 120,677
Balance at end of year 318,795 72,968

Community Care Fund aims to provide home care and support services to
elderly with mild impairment.

Movement of the CCF - Pilot scheme on Home Care and Support for Elderly
Persons with Mild Impairment is as follows:-
2023 2022
HES HES
Income
Subsidy from CCF 598,976 54%, 385
Fees income received from participants 25,558 26,690
Secial Welfare Development COVID-19 - -
624,475 572,075
Expenditure
Audit fee 3,500 3,500
Cleaning 130 -
Eguipment 54,B25 27,525
General expense 2,987 o0
Salaries 197,212 305,895
Frovident fund 13,410 21,191
Programme expenses 93,433 B1, 287
Printing, stationery and postage &0 507
Travelling 3,765 1,059
Telephone and fax 20 -
Electricity and water 9,047 B,634
Insurance 55 -
Staff training 154 -
(378, 648) {451,398}
Surplus for the year 245,827 120,877
Balance at the beginning of the year 72,968 (47,709}
Balance at the end of the year 18,795 72,968
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25.

26.

27.

SOCIAL WELFARE DEPARTMENT TIME-LIMITED POSTS FOR ELDERLY AND REHABILITATICN
SERVICES
2023 2022
HES HES
Balance at beginning of year 25,000 22,700
Transfer (to)/from statement of comprehensive income {25, 000) 2,300
Balance at end of year - 25,000

R === 1

“Time-limited posts for Elderly and Rehabilitation Services” was created
under the Anti-epidemic Fund with a view to enhance techneclogy support for
elderly and rehabilitation service units subsidized by the Social Welfare
Department. A subsidy for a maximum of 12 menths was given to each post from
1 October 2022 to 31 December 2023.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS {(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION

383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.€22) AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE

OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.622G)

No remuneration was paid or payaple to the committee members which needs to
be disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Crdinance
{Cap. €22) and Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation (Cap.622G).

TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made since the Associatien
is a charitable institution and, accordingly, is exempted from Heong Kong tax
under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance,
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23. LEASE COMMITMENT

As lessor

At the reporting date, the Asscciation had future aggregate minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of investment
properties as follows:-

2023 2022
HES HE$
Within one year 1,654,848 1,654,848
After one year but within five years 3,717,696 3,717,696
After five years - -
5,372,544 5,372,544

29, CONTINGENT LIABILITY
2023 2022
HES HES
Long service payments obligation - note 5 646,840 483,504

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK MAHAGEMENT

The Association is ewxposed through its operations to one or more of the
following financial risks:

. Fair walue or cash flow interest rate risk
. Liguidity risk

Policies fer managing these risks are set by the management of the
Association. The policy for each of the above risks is described in more
detail below.

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk

BAs the Association has no significant third party interest-bearing
assetsfliabilities other than in Hong Kong deollar bank deposits, the
Besociation's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates.

Liguidity risk

The Association’s policy is to regularly meonitor current and expected

liguidity reguirements to ensure that is maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liguidity reguirements in the short and longer term.,
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SERVICE DIRECTORY
AR —E

EMV Head Office/ Technical & Computer Aids Services for the Disabled
Communlty Occupatlonal Therapy

EMV #8EF | 558 A LE#HBN 2R | aﬂéiﬁﬂbﬁ%ﬁﬁd’ﬁﬂﬁﬁ | it EREE A R AR

Address: 207-212, Podium Floor, Block 44, Shek Kip Mei Estate, Kowloon
Haht NEEAMEN 44 & (%8 ) ¥5 207-212 F

Tel EE: 2776 8569 Fax /5K : 2788 1194 Email E&B : info@emv.org.hk

Integrated Home Care Service

78 R EPRREARTS

Address: 225-227, Podium Floor, Block 19, Shek Kip Mei Estate, Kowloon

Hohit NEERWRE 19 EB¥4& 225 — 227 =

Tel &L : 2360 0803 Fax BE : 2788 1194 Email EEf : ihcs@emv.org.hk

Pilot Scheme on Home Care & Support for Elderly Persons with Mild Impairment
/ Home Care & Support Services for Elderly Persons with Mild Impairment

YREEREEEERERBIREANESE | RERBNREXREEER ZIZRTE
Address: 225-227, Podium Floor, Block 19, Shek Kip Mei Estate, Kowloon

Mt TUBEEHRETS 19 B4 225 — 227 =

Tel &E5E : 2779 8616 Fax 8K : 2779 8821

Integrated Vocational Rehabilitation Service Centre — The Endeavor
FEMRERERBHLO - ERPO

Address: G/F, Sau Tai House & Mei Tai House, Fu Tai Estate, Tuen Mun, N.T.
Hbht FATEMERNSRELEREMT

Tel BT : 3157 1515 Fax 85 : 3157 1514 Email EEEB : endeavor@emv.org.hk

Supported Employment Service

i B ik € AR 7%

Address: Unit No. 2, G/F, Tung Lung House, Tai Hang Tung Estate, Kowloon

Hohit NEABERTUENREEM T 2 55

Tel EEE : 2788 4749 Fax 8K : 27884088 Email EE} : ses@emv.org.hk

Jockey Club Desktop Publishing Centre

EEEZEBERP O

Address: 12-14, G/F., Ying Tung House, Tung Tau Estate, Kowloon

Haoht NEBEHENBHEE 12 F 14 55T

Tel E5E: 27160228 Fax 8K : 27169817 Email EEp : jedtp@emv.org.hk
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Jockey Club Digital Inclusion Centre / IT Solution for Rehabilitation
BERSEBARMT O | BRERERS

Address: 225-227, Podium Floor, Block 19, Shek Kip Mei Estate, Kowloon

Mot NEAWERN 19 Y& 225 — 227 &
Tel EEE: 27798333/ Fax & : 27798821/ Email EEB : jcdic@emv.org.hk /
2788 3211 2788 1194 Crehab@emv_org_hk

Eco Farm

EBEIRRET
Address: CS234, Leung Hong Lane, Tuen Mun, N.T.
Hont AT RERMEL CS234
Tel EZE: 9667 8816 Fax 885 : 3157 1514 Email B : ecofarm@emv.org.hk

Electric Wheelchair Repair Clinic and Resource Centre
HECE - BERE—

Address: Unit B, 8/F., 1-7, Kin Hong Street, Che Wah Industrial Building, Kwai Chung, N.T.

Mot FIRBREMS 1-7 FRETIEPLSEBR
Tel EEE : 2772 3080 Fax BHE : 27723280 Email EE : ewc@emv.org.hk

Social Enterprise — The CLEAN Laundry
MHEEE - BEAKRBLE

Address: Room 11, 10/F, Block 4, Nam Fung Industrial City, 18 Tin Hau Road, Tuen Mun, N.T.
Hohik FRTPHREHE 18 RMmETENFAE 10 11 E

Tel E&E: 35231072 Fax {§E : 3523 1074 Email EEP : laundry@emv.org.hk

Occupational Deafness Compensation Board —
Occupational Deafness Rehabilitation Activities and Services

R K IR B R ARFEETEI

Address: 225-227, Podium Floor, Block 19, Shek Kip Mei Estate, Kowloon

Motk JUEEARRETS 19 BESEE& 225 — 227 &

Tel E:E : 3618 9009 Fax 58 : 2779 8821 Email EEB : odrs@emv.org.hk
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We would like to express our gratitude to the following units for AERLREHFFUER  BEHASN
their generous donations and support to our services: BERZE  FIISH -

ORGANIZATION, CORPORATION AND FUND [EREHHiE - ARREE

The Hong Kong Community Chest Capital Project Fund BERIYIIRES

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust FEE NS E RS RIS

Occupational Deafness Compensation Board E A E N SRk A R 2 BB B AR S B

Office of Student Affairs, Hong Kong Baptist University =D A G B A EEEA RIEEL

Synergy Distribution Limited ——

RS AR T T B
RKBRDPBEE S MFRKE REEBE S R R A RAS]

BERPXARBEYEE: " HSEM, ERBEE S—

BENCEBEDTRLITRERES s = gL

RYRERILEREES

EEREBS

INDIVIDUALS BEA

HEE MR TR Ak

Y a2 glte 2t

BiEH 2t BREE /A
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DONATION FORM
RERTRE

To advocate and spearhead engineering and medical volunteering
services and to integrate other social resources to enhance the
independent living and quality of life for people with disabilities and
the elderly. Your donation would support and develop our services
for people with disabled and elderly.

Donation Information  B&EF

Donation Amount 185k $ %8 HKD & $

FrIREBEEBILAERSE , 8
—ANZFERIILIR  —ERARER
ATRE—RIINERRE - LUB R
MBI AETERED - BT HBHRREEL
BR¥5 - ASMBRIRAVIBEY » LIZF K
BREREBERATRRENSERE -

Donation Method 38375 7% [ Crossed cheque #l#&xZ=

* Cheque Payble ‘Association for Engineering and Medical Volunteer Services’
EhEERT IEMNEREB LIRS

* Please send this form & your cheque by mail BIEAXRKER X ZEFHAD

2

Cheque Number 3 Z3EHE Issing Bank %5 2% 4R 4T

[] Bank Deposit / Transfer $R1TARR / #iR (HSBC 121 - 831721 - 838)
* Please send this form & pay in-slip by mail / email / fax
BEARBERASR BT | EF /| EH K4S

Please send to 5% 1

: “Association for Engineering and Medical Volunteer Services”,

Unit 207-212, Podium Floor, Block 44, Shek Kip Mei Estate,

Shek Kip Mei, Kowloon

NERAKEN 44 FESE S 207-212 F >

'TIERBEEBIFBE . W

E-mail EE: info@emv.org.hk / Fax {HHE : 2788 1194

o f,

Donor Information B AEE

Name #4 (Mr/Ms.) :

Telephone No H##& B+ - Email EH :

Address it :

* The Association is Tax-Exempt Charities, the official receipt for tax purposes will be issued.

RERBTRBANESHEE BRI AERLHRUBIE -

Note: Your personal data will be kept strictly confidential. Under the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, we
need to obtain your consent as we intend to use your personal information in direct marketing services,
activities, products, donation matters, volunteer recruitment, training courses and feedbacks .

B ETARENBEAENSEHRERE - RE (BAER (BB ) KH)

CASTFEMBETRAE A 2RAFER

SRBEEANETE  BREERE  BFH ER B BLRZ  HIFELAERKES -

[] 'agree HAE [] !disagree HARRE

Signature of Donor 3B A% E :

92

Date HE#f :
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